
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Arlington Public Schools 

Purchasing Office 

 
 

NOTICE OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 
 

Issued on November 10, 2016 
 
 
PROPOSAL TITLE:  ARCHITECTURE/INTERIOR DESIGN/ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

FOR TENANT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AT SYPHAX EDUCATION CENTER 

LOCATED AT SEQUOIA PLAZA II  
 
RFP NO.:  31FY17 
 
RFP ISSUE DATE: OCTOBER 28, 2016 
 
PROPOSAL DUE  
DATE AND TIME:      NOVEMBER 18, 2016 PRIOR TO 2:00 P. M., (LOCAL PREVAILING TIME) 
 
 
Attachment A – Filled in Sign in Sheet 
 
Attachment B – PowerPoint slides from Pre-proposal Conference 
 
 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FOR CLARIFICATION: 
 
Q.1. Do we need to complete Appendices C & D and include it in our response?  On page 11 of the RFP, we noted that 

Section VI. states that “Fees are not be submitted with this Proposal” but Appendices C & D are not listed under 

Section VII, top of page 12, as included “in the RFP for information purposes only and must be signed and 

submitted by the successful Offeror: Appendices E, F & G”, assuming “successful Offeror” is the firm who has 

been awarded the project.  Based on that instruction, we will find it helpful if you could provide further 

clarification to whether we need to include C & D in our response. 

A.1. No. Appendices C & D are for informational purposes only so that when we do request the non-binding fees the 

Offerors are aware of the format requested. 

Q.2. Would it make sense to include a move management consulting firm on our team?  Or would that be under APS 

as a separate contract? 

A.2.  Please include appropriate consultant in the team to utilize as an option. APS has not determined how it will 

contract moving services for the project.  



Q.3. What is included in the $9.6 - $9.9 million construction cost (AV/IT, FF&E, etc. and magnitude of anticipated MEP 
systems re-work required)? 

 
A.3. The construction costs range provided in the RFP is an order of magnitude based on historic cost information.  It 

includes all hard construction costs, AV/IT, engineering systems, and built in components.  It excludes loose 
furniture and any existing equipment to be relocated and reused.   

 
Q.4. A.1.1 on page 17 of the RFP refers to existing APS space standards.  Will APS provide those to us as part of the 

proposal process? 
 
A.4. APS typical office space and FF&E standards are those that were used in the previous tenant fit out project.  

Standards for specialty spaces, such as the board room, will be developed during Phase 1 - Programming 
Services.  

 
Q.5. Please confirm that, even though the base contract is for Phase 1 planning/programming and concept 

development, the evaluation criteria will be applied to the firms’ qualifications in regard to the entire project 
through construction and close-out.  

 
A.5. Yes, confirmed.  
 
Q.6. Should the PDF submission included on flash drives be separated by tab, or is a single PDF of the offeror’s 

proposal response preferred? 
 
A.6. Either way is ok, providing the single PDF identifies where the Tabs/Sections start and stop. 
 
Q.7 Will APS give more weight to teams that include small businesses (or any of the types of businesses listed on 

page 3) than those teams that do not?   
 
A.7.  No. However, small business participation is encouraged. 
 
Q.8. Does APS prefer that consultants be based, or have extensive experience, in Arlington and/or the Northern 

Virginia area? 
 
A.8. APS has no such preference for this project. 
 
Q.9. What MEP firms are familiar with (have worked on) the Syphax Building?   
 
A.9. APS prefers that Offerors propose the best engineer for the project. 

 
Q.10. If a prime consultant that is not a small business hires consultants with small business (or other) certifications, 

how would APS prefer the prime to acknowledge such certifications in the RFP response? 
 
A.10.  See response to question 7. 
 
Q.11. Please clarify the meaning of “original electronic copy.”  How does this differ from a “separate electronic copy?” 
 
A11. In this case there is no difference. 
 
Q.12. If our response does not include any proprietary information, it is still necessary to include TAB 8? 
 
A12.  Yes. Please state no proprietary information under Tab 8. 
 



Q.13. Can you please provide clarity around the existing square footage. How much do you have now (total) and in 
which locations, and how much will you expect to have after the consolidation and in which locations?  

 
A.13.  APS currently leases approximately sixty-two thousand (62,000) square feet on 1st floor and partial 2nd floor at 

the same building. New renovation will be approximately eighty thousand (80,000) square feet on other floors. 
It is a four story building. 

 
Q.14. Are there any existing studies and/or base drawings available?  

A. 14. No existing studies are available.  Limited base drawings are available and will be provided to the successful 

Offeror.  

Q.15. Does Arlington County have certain CAD standards i.e. AutoCAD versus BIM Platforms that are required for all 
county work? 

 
A15. APS does not have specific CAD standards. 
  
Q.16. Are there facilities design standards for Arlington County Public Schools Offices (office sizes, building finishes, 

office furniture, conference and support space requirements, etc.) 
 
A.16. See response to question 4.  
  
Q.17. Does the available space in the building at 2110 Washington Boulevard allow for lease consolidation on 

contiguous floors?  
 
A.17.  Yes. 
 
Q.18. We do not currently carry business automobile insurance. Is a statement that we will provide this insurance 

upon notification of a contract award sufficient? 

A.18. As long as the insurance can be in place prior to work being done under the contract than the requirement will 

be considered satisfied. 

Q.19. Item IV. A. on page 7 of 47 of the RFP states that the hard copies are to be submitted in a binder. At the pre-

proposal conference it was stated either a binder or 'otherwise bound' copies. Is there a preference on how the 

hard copies are bound? 

A.19. No preference. 

Q.20. Does the funding of approximately $9.6 to $9.9 Million include the following: relocation of the TV Studio, 

relocation of the School Board Room, systems furniture, and FF&E? 

A.20 See response to question 3.  

Q.21. Will BIM be mandatory for this project considering it is a tenant fit-out in an existing building? If BIM is required 
will the selected Architect be provided with a BIM model and/or CAD files of the existing structure and build-out 
or will the selected Architect need to perform extensive existing conditions documentation? 

A.21. BIM will not be a requirement, but is highly encouraged for the new work.  See response to question 14. 

Q.22. Is there a specific systems furniture manufacturer that APS is standardized on?  

A.22.  No. 



Q.23. Please provide more information on what is being planned for the TV Studio? Does it require a 2-story space (15-
18 ft ceiling height)? Will the TV Studio require rooftop equipment for broadcast? What type of broadcast 
conducted….satellite and/or digital? Do you anticipate separate edit suites and a control room? Do you 
anticipate the requirement for a separate machine room with redundant equipment? Will the TV Studio 
relocation entail simply a reconstruction “in-kind” with relocation of existing equipment, or will the size and 
scope be changed or improved from what currently exists? What is the current size of the existing TV Studio 
(Width X Depth X Height)? 

A.23. The feasibility of relocating the TV Studio will be part of the scope of the initial phase of work.  

Q.24. Will the relocation of the Board room entail only the relocation of existing equipment or will APS want to 
explore an improved Board room with newer technology capabilities? 

A.24. Primarily a relocation of existing technology equipment; these systems were renovated in summer 2016. 

Q.25. If LEED certification is not pursued will Systems Commissioning still be required? Should a Commissioning Agent 
be included in the proposed team or can one be added at a later date, once APS decides on LEED certification 
goals? 

A.25.  It is not necessary to provide a commissioning agent as part of the A/E team.  APS will contract directly for any 
commissioning activities.     

Q.26. Will a security consultant be required on the team or can building and floor security (access control) be 

coordinated with the current security monitoring company? Who is the security monitoring company used for 

APS at this building? 

A.26 It is not necessary to provide a security consultant, though low voltage system design will be required from the 

A/E team.  Detail of the current security system and monitoring company will be provided to the successful 

Offeror.   

Q.27. Will evaluation of existing MEP and Life Safety Systems be part of the programming phase? If so, will a formal 

report be required? 

A.27. Yes, they will be part of the project and any information should be included as part of the Program of 

Requirements report. 

Q.28. Can you provide the APS space standards? 

A.28. See response to question 4. 

Q.29.  Can you provide the APS FF&E standards? 

A.29. See response to question 4. 

Q.30. Can you supply PDF drawings of the floor plans? 

A.30. See response to question 14. 

Q.31. Will you be providing the photos from the slide show? 

A. 31. Yes, included in Addendum 1.  

Q.32. Are there CAD drawings available for the winning team? 

A.32. See response to question 14. 



Q.33. What is the current square footage for the board room? 

A.33. The existing board room is approximately 2,000 square feet.  There are two conference rooms, each 500 square 

feet, directly adjacent to the board room that can be opened to enlarge the board room.       

 
This Addendum #1 for RFP 31FY17 – ARCHITECTURE/INTERIOR DESIGN/ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 
TENANT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AT SYPHAX EDUCATION CENTER LOCATED AT SEQUOIA PLAZA II, must be signed, 

dated and received in the Purchasing Office prior to the date and time stated above “OR” acknowledgment of receipt of 

this addendum may be noted on the RFP.  (See RFP Title Page One). 
 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 
Ellen H. Wills, CPPB, VCO 
Assistant Director of Purchasing  
Telephone:  (703) 228-7649 
Cell: (703) 244-6580 
Email:  ellen.wills@apsva.us 
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